
 

 

 Switchboard: 01293 438000 

Main fax: 01293 511803 

Minicom: 01293 405202 DX: 

57139 Crawley 1 

www.crawley.gov.uk 
 

 

Town Hall 
The Boulevard 

Crawley 
West Sussex 

RH10 1UZ 
 

 

COUNCILLORS' INFORMATION BULLETIN 
 

Tuesday, 4 August 2020  
 

Bulletin No: IB/1039 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM Pages 

1   Delegated Planning Decisions 5 - 8 

 Delegated planning decisions for the week beginning 27 July 2020 are 
attached.  Contact for enquiries: Jean McPherson, Group Manager: 
Development Management on jean.mcpherson@crawley.gov.uk.  
 

 

2   Temporary Traffic Regulation Order: Horsham Road 9 - 10 

 A Temporary Traffic Regulation Order for Horsham Road is attached. 
 

 

3   Chief Executive: Emergency Urgency Decision - Adoption of 
Pavement Licence Policy 

11 - 28 

 The Chief Executive, under the Emergency Urgency Decision powers, has 
approved the adoption of the provisions of the Business and Planning Bill 
2020 and the adoption of the Pavement Licence Policy.  The Chief 
Executive has also authorised the Head of Community Services to make 
revisions to this Policy in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Environmental Services and Sustainability. 
 
The decision was taken in consultation with Councillor Lamb (as Leader of 
the Council), Councillor Crow (as Leader of the Conservative Party), 
Councillor Jhans (as Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and 
Sustainability), Councillor Jones (as Chair of the Licensing Committee) and 
Councillor B Burgess (as Vice-Chair of the Licensing Committee who all 
confirmed their support. 
 
A copy of the full decision and the Pavement Licence Policy are attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:jean.mcpherson@crawley.gov.uk


 
 

4   COVID-19: CMT Urgent Significant Operational Decisions 29 - 30 

 Due to the outbreak of the Coronavirus Pandemic COVID-19 it has been 
necessary for the Corporate Management Team to take some urgent 
Significant Operational Decisions. These decisions were taken with due 
regard to, and in accordance with, published Government Guidance. The 
recent decisions taken, along with supporting information such as the 
reasons for them are attached. 
 

 

5   Parks and Playing Fields Update  

 Hound Ground  
Opening this August. £10 per session to rent the paddock at Tilgate Park 
for off-lead dog training of up to six dogs. Covid Secure with 15 minutes 
between appointments and online booking for test and trace.  
 
Dog Wash 
We have a brand new facility for dog owners…a fully automated, self-serve 
dog washing station!  A company called Polygon Pets have installed their 
machine by the main toilets and are responsible for its upkeep and 
replenishment.  The customer pays a fee (using contactless card) and then 
uses the facility - shampoo, rinse and dry.  This facility has been very 
popular in other parks and it provides a small additional income stream. 
 
Adventure Zone 
The adventure zone (children’s rides) is moving from the Walled Garden to 
an area adjacent to the footpath between Smith and Western and the adult 
GoApe.  This move has been necessary to spread out the attractions and 
to enable social distancing in the Walled Garden. 
 
Goffs Park Kiosk 
Until recently the kiosk was a subsidised service offering Pitch and Putt 
and light refreshments. It has been closed since March due to Covid-19 
with Pitch and Putt left free of charge to play. A trial concessionaire will be 
reopening the kiosk from early August to issue clubs, sell a range of 
refreshments and reheated food such as toasties, sausage rolls and 
coffee. Once open the concessionaire will restart charging, possibly at 
reduced rates to reflect current course conditions and quality of play. 
Exciting forward plans (to be agreed) are to re-sculpt nine of the holes for 
Adventure Foot Golf in 2021. The Council will receive 20% of café profits 
this year and next year if plans and arrangements are agreed, 20% of café 
profits plus 30% of Foot Golf/Pitch and Putt profits. 
 
Cricket 
The cricket season has been devastated by COVID 19 however, the 
Grounds team have pulled out the stops to get a couple of cricket squares 
useable by the 10th and 17th August at Cherry Lane.  Peter Harsum is 
working with representatives of Sussex Cricket to ensure the outfields are 
playable as we were unable to do pre-season maintenance such as 
rolling.  The games will be shared fairly and proportionately amongst our 
existing Crawley teams. 
 
 
 

 

Page 2



 
 

Football 
The team have managed to get a few football pitches ready for pre-season 
friendlies available from the beginning of August. It is anticipated that all 
pitches will be ready by the end of September for the start of the football 
season. 
 
If you would like any further information please let me know 
 
Karen Rham 
Neighbourhood Services Manager 
 

6   Press Releases  

 Press releases are available at www.crawley.gov.uk/news  

Page 3

http://www.crawley.gov.uk/news


This page is intentionally left blank



CRAWLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

DELEGATED PLANNING DECISIONS 
 
The following decisions were issued, subject to conditions, under delegated powers for the period 27/07/2020 and 31/07/2020 
 
 

Application Number Location Proposal Date of Decision Decision 

CR/2018/0693/CC1 R/O 5 - 9 SOUTHGATE 
ROAD, SOUTHGATE, 
CRAWLEY 

Discharge of conditions 3 (materials), 4 
(design - slab levels), 5 (landscaping 
scheme part 1) and 12 (construction 
management plan) pursuant to 
CR/2018/0693/FUL for creation of a 
new access road between numbers 5 
and 7 Southgate Road and construction 
of three detached dwellings on land to 
the rear of 5 - 9 Southgate Road 

28 July 2020 APPROVE 

CR/2019/0282/CC1 LAND REAR OF 3 
SOUTHGATE ROAD, 
SOUTHGATE, CRAWLEY 

Discharge of conditions 3 (materials), 4 
(design - slab levels), 5 (landscaping 
scheme) and 12 (construction 
management plan) pursuant to 
CR/2019/0282/FUL for construction of a 
detached four-bedroom house with 
garage 

28 July 2020 APPROVE 

CR/2019/0665/FUL FORMER ROYAL BANK OF 
SCOTLAND PLC, 50 - 54 
HIGH STREET, WEST 
GREEN, CRAWLEY 

Change of use of ground floor from A2 
(bank) to A4 (bar)  

31 July 2020 PERMIT 

CR/2019/0758/CC1 5 - 7 BRIGHTON ROAD, 
SOUTHGATE, CRAWLEY 

Discharge of conditions 3 (materials) 
and 7 (water consuming components) 
pursuant to CR/2019/0758/FUL for 
change of use from financial and 
professional services (A2)/ business 
(B1) to dental practice (D1), alterations 
to the shopfront, alterations to the front 
boundary treatment with new fence and 
gate, installation of 3 no. Condensing 
units on the ground floor southern 
elevation 

29 July 2020 APPROVE 

P
age 5

 1 Delegated Planning Decisions

A
genda Item

 1



Application Number Location Proposal Date of Decision Decision 

CR/2020/0063/TPO BLACK CORNER SMALL 
HOLDING, BALCOMBE 
ROAD, POUND HILL, 
CRAWLEY 

T1 Willow - fell 

T2 Willow - fell 

T3 Willow - fell 

T4 Willow - fell 

T5 Willow - fell 

T6 Willow - fell 

29 July 2020 SPLIT 
DECISION 

CR/2020/0097/FUL RECTORY FARMHOUSE, 
IFIELD STREET, IFIELD, 
CRAWLEY 

Demolition of existing single storey side 
projection and replacement with part 
two storey part single storey side 
extension. Demolition of existing rear / 
side facing conservatory style structure 
and replacement with single storey rear 
/ side extension. Proposed rear storm 
porch 

31 July 2020 REFUSE 

CR/2020/0172/FUL 1 GATWICK ROAD, 
NORTHGATE, CRAWLEY, 

Refurbishment of car showroom, 
workshop with MOT facility, extension 
of vehicle display and parking areas 
and alterations to the external 
appearance of the building including a 
new parapet wall 

30 July 2020 PERMIT 

CR/2020/0187/NCC OAKLEIGH, CHURCH ROAD, 
POUND HILL, CRAWLEY 

Variation of condition 2 (drawings) 
pursuant to CR/2018/0744/FUL (for 
erection of a single storey 3-bedroom 
detached dwelling, alteration to drive 
width, access drive and associated 
parking) to: 
• reduce width to south by 0.5m and 

extend length to east by 0.7m 
• amendment to the width of the 

planting to the east of the two car 
parking spaces associated with the 
new dwelling 

• addition of a flue 
• addition of a SVP 
• change to roof fenestration and PV 

panel configuration to south 

27 July 2020 PERMIT 

P
age 6

 1 Delegated Planning Decisions

A
genda Item

 1



Application Number Location Proposal Date of Decision Decision 

elevation comprising one extra 
rooflight 

• change to fenestration detailing to 
north elevation 

 change from one bi-folding doors 
(x3 leaf) and a window to one bi-
folding door (x4 leaf) and change 
to timber detailing 

CR/2020/0223/FUL 36 LOPPETS ROAD, 
TILGATE, CRAWLEY 

Erection of single storey rear extension 27 July 2020 PERMIT 

CR/2020/0243/FUL 42 BURLANDS, LANGLEY 
GREEN, CRAWLEY 

Erection of single storey front extension 
with replacement pitched roof over 
existing flat roof porch, first floor side 
extension and single storey rear 
extension 

31 July 2020 PERMIT 

CR/2020/0263/FUL 19 DENCHERS PLAT, 
LANGLEY GREEN, 
CRAWLEY 

Erection of porch and single storey side 
extension incorporating garage, utility 
room and WC 

31 July 2020 REFUSE 

CR/2020/0264/FUL 5 - 6 QUEENS SQUARE, 
NORTHGATE, CRAWLEY 

Erection of single storey roof extension 
to create 2 x 1 bed dwellings with 
associated cycle parking and refuse 
storage 

29 July 2020 REFUSE 

CR/2020/0366/TEL GRASS VERGE ADJACENT 
TO CROWNE PLAZA HOTEL, 
LANGLEY DRIVE, LANGLEY 
GREEN, CRAWLEY 

Notification for intention to install 
electronic communications apparatus 
pursuant to the electronic 
communications code regulations 2003 

27 July 2020 NO 
OBJECTION 

CR/2020/0377/TPO 19 SHETLAND CLOSE, 
POUND HILL, CRAWLEY 

Oak - fell 29 July 2020 CONSENT 

CR/2020/0397/CON LAND AT BYERS LANE, 
SOUTH GODSTONE, 
SURREY 

Consultation from Tandridge District 
Council (2020/882) erection of single 
storey building. Change of use of land 
to crematorium and burial ground 
incorporating associated parking, 
access and landscaping works 

29 July 2020 NO 
OBJECTION 

P
age 7

 1 Delegated Planning Decisions

A
genda Item

 1



Application Number Location Proposal Date of Decision Decision 

CR/2020/0406/TEL ARORA HOTEL, 
SOUTHGATE AVENUE, 
SOUTHGATE, CRAWLEY 

Notification for installation of 3 x small 
antenna support units (RRU’S), 1 x 
GPS module and ancillary works 
thereto 
(CTIL127678/TEF33226/VF34263) 

30 July 2020 NO 
OBJECTION 

 

P
age 8

 1 Delegated Planning Decisions

A
genda Item

 1



	 	

PUBLIC	NOTICE
	

Temporary	closure	of	Horsham	Road,	West	Green,	15th	August	2020

	

NOTICE	IS	HEREBY	GIVEN	that	from	the	date	specified	below,	West	Sussex	County	Council	has
temporarily	closed	to	all	traffic	Horsham	Road,	West	Green	in	the	Crawley	District	under	Section
14(2)	of	the	Road	Traffic	Regulation	Act	1984,	as	amended,	on	Horsham	Road		from	the	junction	of
Spencers	Road	to	the	junction	of	Springfield	Road.

The	temporary	closure	is	scheduled	to	commence	on	15th	August	2020	for	up	to	5	days	(It	is
estimated	to	be	completed	on	17th	August	2020)		and	is	required	for	the	safety	of	the	public	and
workforce	while	Network	Rail	Infrastructure	Ltd	undertakes	a	road	closure	for	Network	Rail	to	load
plant	and	materials	on	and	off	the	railway	track	with	works	taking	place	on	the	level	crossing.

The	restriction	will	be	in	place	24hrs.

An	alternative	route	will	be	signed	on	site	but	please	visit		Unknown	(public_url)	for	more	details.

Access	for	emergency	service	vehicles	and	pedestrians	will	be	maintained	at	all	times	during	the
closure.

For	information	regarding	this	closure	please	contact	Rebecca	Hardman	of	Centurion	on	0113
2775360	who	will	able	to	assit	with	scope	of	these	works.

	

Dated:	2nd	June	2020
Matt	Davey

Director	of	Highways,	Transport	and	Planning

	

West	Sussex	County	Council

Report	a	problem	with	a	road	or	pavement	or	raise	a	highways	related	enquiry

Follow	us	at	@WSHighways

Email:	ttro@westsussex.gov.uk

	

	

Page 9

 2
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 T
ra

ffi
c 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

O
rd

er
:

Agenda Item 2

http://www.westsussex.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/report-a-problem-with-a-road-or-pavement/
http://www.westsussex.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/make-an-enquiry-about-a-road-or-pavement/
http://twitter.com/WShighways
mailto:ttro@westsussex.gov.uk


	

Page 10

 2
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 T
ra

ffi
c 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

O
rd

er
:

Agenda Item 2



 
 

RECORD OF DECISION TAKEN UNDER EMERGENCY 
URGENCY POWERS 

SUMMARY OF DECISION TO BE TAKEN:  ADOPTION OF PAVEMENT LICENCE POLICY 

- Adoption of the provisions of the Business and Planning Bill 2020 
 

- Adopt the document entitled “Pavement Licence Policy” as part of this process, delegating 
any revisions to this Policy to the Head of Community Services in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and Sustainability 
 

 

ASSOCIATED COMMITTEE:  Key Decision – Cabinet 

 

 

RELEVANT PERSONS CONSULTED:   

 Leader of the Council – Councillor Lamb 

 Opposition Leader – Councillor Crow 

 Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and Sustainability –– Councillor Jhans 

 Chair of Licensing Committee – Councillor Jones 

 Vice Chair of Licensing Committee– Councillor Brenda Burgess 
 

Consultation was undertaken from 22 July 2020 to 29 July 2020 and views expressed were 
considered and helped shaped the proposed Pavement Licence Policy. 

 

 

DECISION:    

1. The adoption of the ‘Pavement Licence Policy' and  
 

2. Any revisions to this Policy are delegated to the Head of Community Services in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and Sustainability.  
 

 

REASONS FOR DECISION AND FURTHER INFORMATION:   
 
Pavement Licensing, adoption of new provisions and functions associated with same.  
 
The Licencing of Tables & Chairs on the highway is normally licenced under the Highways Act 
1980 by the West Sussex County Council.  
 
In order to encourage the return of small businesses and high street shops to re-open and to 
enable physical distancing of customers in outdoor settings the County Council, and latterly all 
District and Borough Councils  agreed to waive all charges for the licences for tables and chairs on 
the highway at this time.   
 

Page 11

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Agenda Item 3



 
 

Government has drafted the Business and Planning Bill which proposes a range of relaxations 
including the relaxation of off sales of alcohol, changes to planning consents and that the 
responsibility for the grant of ‘pavement’ licences being transferred to District & Borough Councils. 
It includes provisions for much shortened consultation and approval process.  This legislation is 
being ‘fast-tracked’ and may be enacted in the next 2 weeks. The Business and Planning Bill is 
going through the final legislative stages and the provisions in the Bill are still subject to potential 
change, 
 
The Government has issued Guidance in relation to Pavement Licences, but it is in draft form as 
the Business and Planning Bill 2020 is still in parliamentary process which means the existing 
process for pavement licensing via West Sussex County Council Highways Department is still in 
operation – and will be until the Bill is made into law.  
 
In anticipation of these changes, Crawley Borough Council have been working closely with Officers 
at West Sussex County Council in the District and Boroughs to ensure a co-ordinated and 
consistent approach. The County Council, as Highway Authority, will remain a consultee in the 
licensing application process. The proposed timescale for consultation and determination is 14 
days, but this may change.  
 
Under the current proposals included in the Business and Planning Bill, businesses will be able to 
apply for a temporary pavement licence for a maximum duration until 30 September 2021. 
However, in order to assess the impact of these licences on residents and other businesses in the 
locality, any pavement licence will be granted for no longer than 6 months in the first instance.  
 

 
 
I hereby agree that I will take the decision as set out above, for the reasons detailed, under the 
Council’s Emergency Urgency Powers. 
 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
Date:  30 July 2020 

Page 12

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Agenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 1 

 

CRAWLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL    

  

 
Pavement Licence Policy 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Effective: 30th July 2020 
Version 4 – Final Policy Draft  
July 2020  

Page 13

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 2 

Contents  
 

Section 
 

Title Page 

1 
 

Introduction 3 

2 
 

Scope 3 

3 
 

Application, Determination & Appeals of Pavement 
Licences 

4 

4 
 

Conditions 7 

5 
 

Enforcement 7 

6 
 

Review Procedures 8 

Appendix 1 
 

Site Notice Template 9 

Appendix 2 Standard Pavement Licence Conditions  
 

10 

Appendix 3 Conditions relating to Noise, Nuisance, Crime & Disorder.  
 

14 

  

Page 14

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 3 

1. Introduction 
 
The Covid-19 pandemic has affected businesses across the economy causing many to cease 
trading for several months while others have had to significantly modify their operations.  
 
As the economy starts to re-open, the Government announced a further and urgent relaxation to 
planning and licensing laws to help the hospitality industry recover from the coronavirus lockdown. 
 
The Business and Planning Act 2020 makes it easier for premises serving food and drink such as 
bars, restaurants and pubs, as lockdown restrictions are lifted but social distancing guidelines 
remain in place, to seat and serve customers outdoors through temporary changes to planning 
procedures and alcohol licensing.   
 
The measures included in the Act modify provisions in the Licensing Act 2003 to provide automatic 
extensions to the terms of on-sales alcohol licences to allow for off-sales.  It will be a temporary 
measure to boost the economy, with provisions lasting until 30th September 2021.    
 
The Act also introduces a temporary fast-track process for these businesses to obtain permission, 
in the form of a “pavement licence”, from the Crawley Borough Council for the placement of 
furniture such as tables and chairs on the pavement outside their premises which will enable them 
to maximise their capacity whilst adhering to social distancing guidelines.  
 
Until now, tables and chairs permissions are granted as pavement licences by West Sussex 
County Council, the Highways Authority, under Part 7A of the Highways Act 1980.  The fee varied 
between local authorities and there is a time consuming 28 day consultation period. 
 
The new temporary measure places a cap on the application fee for businesses, and introduces a 
new 14-day determination period ensuring that businesses can obtain licences in a timely and cost 
effective manner aiding to their financial recovery. 
 
 

2. Scope 
 
2.1 Definition of pavement licence 
 
A pavement licence is a licence granted by the local authority, or deemed to have been granted, 
which allows the licence-holder to place removable furniture over certain highways adjacent to the 
premises in relation to which the application was made, for certain purposes.  
 
2.2 Eligible Businesses 
 
A person (whether an individual or a company) who uses (or proposes to use) premises for the 
sale of food or drink for consumption (on or off the premises) can apply for a licence. This will 
usually be the registered food business operator and/or the premises licence holder under the 
Licensing Act 2003.  The types of businesses that are eligible include: public houses, cafes, bars, 
restaurants, snack bars, coffee shops, and ice cream parlours. 
 
A pavement licence permits the licence-holder to use furniture placed on the highway to sell or 
serve food or drink and/or allow it to be used by people for consumption of food or drink supplied 
from, or in connection with the use of the premises. 
 
 
2.3 Eligible Locations 
 
Pavement licences can only be granted in respect of highways to which Part 7A of Highways Act 
1980 applies.   
 

Page 15

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 4 

Generally, these are footpaths restricted to pedestrians or are roads and places to which vehicle 
access is restricted or prohibited. Highways maintained by Network Rail or over the Crown land are 
exempt (so a pavement licence cannot be granted). 
 
2.3 Type of furniture permitted 
 
The furniture which may be used is: 
 

 counters or stalls for selling or serving food or drink; 

 tables, counters or shelves on which food or drink can be placed; 

 chairs, benches or other forms of seating; and 

 umbrellas, barriers, heaters and other articles used in connection with the outdoor 
consumption of food or drink. 

 
This furniture is required to be removable, which in principle this means it is not a permanent fixed 
structure, and is able to be moved easily, and stored away at the end of each day. 
 
The Council would also expect the type of furniture to be ‘in keeping’ with the local area. 
 
2.4 Planning Permission 
 
Once a pavement licence is granted, or deemed to be granted, the applicant will also benefit from 
deemed planning permission to use the land for anything done pursuant to the pavement licence. 
 
 

3. Application and Determination of Pavement Licences 
 
3.1 Submission of the Application 
 
An application for a pavement licence must be made to the Council, and the following will be 
required to be submitted with the application: 

 

 a completed Application Form 

 a plan showing the location of the existing premises shown by a red line, so the application 
site can be clearly identified  

 a plan clearly showing the area of the highway proposed to be covered by the pavement 
licence (if granted), and, if not to scale, with measurements clearly shown.  The plan must 
show the positions and number of the proposed tables and chairs, together with any other 
furniture that they wish to place on the highway. The plan shall include clear measurements 
of, for example, pathway width/length, building width and any other fixed item in the 
proposed area.  

 the proposed days of the week on which, and the times of day between which, it is 
proposed to put furniture on the highway, 

 the proposed duration of the pavement licence (for e.g. 3 months, 6 months, or a year); 

 Confirmation that the applicant is either the registered food business operator or the 
premises licence holder under the Licensing Act 2003 

 photos or brochures showing the proposed type of furniture and information on potential 
siting of it within the area applied; 

 (if applicable) reference of existing pavement licence currently under consideration by the 
local authority;  

 evidence that the applicant has met the requirement to give notice of the application (for 
example photographs of the notice outside the premises and of the notice itself) - see 
further at 3.3;a copy of a current certificate of public liability insurance that covers anything 
to be done by the applicant pursuant to the pavement licence (if granted) to a minimum 
value of £10 million, and 

Page 16

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 5 

 any other evidence needed to demonstrate how the Council’s standard local conditions and 
any national conditions will be satisfied. 

 
3.2 Fees 
 
The Council has decided that it will initially not charge a fee for pavement licence applications, 
however, this may be subject to change. If a decision is subsequently taken to charge fees for 
applications, this Policy will be amended accordingly and published on the Council’s website.  
 
3.3 Consultation 
 
Applications are published by Crawley Borough Council for consultation for a period of 7 days.  
The consultation period starts the day after a valid application was made to the Council.   
 
The Council will publish details of the application on its website at 
www.crawley.gov.uk/licensing/pavementlicence. 
 
The Council is required by law to consult with the Highways Authority.  In addition, to ensure that 
there are not detrimental effects to the application the Council will consult with: 
 

 Crawley Borough Council Economic Development Team. 

 Crawley Borough Council Councillors 

 Crawley Borough Council Environmental Health Service (including 

 Pollution Control  and Food Teams) 

 Crawley Borough Council Planning Department 

 West Sussex Fire & Rescue Service 

 Sussex Police 
 
Members of the public and others listed above can contact the Council to make representations.  
 
The Council must take into account representations received during the public consultation period 
and consider these when determining the application. 
 
3.4 Site Notice 
 
An applicant for a pavement licence must on the day the application is made, fix a notice of the 
application to the premises so that the notice is readily visible to, and can be read easily by, 
members of the public who are not on the premises.  The notice must be constructed and secured 
so that it remains in place until the end of the public consultation period (see 3.3 above).  Evidence 
of the Site Notice requirement must be supplied to the Council. A template Site Notice is included 
at Appendix 1 
 
The Site Notice must: 

 

 state that the application has been made and the date on which it was made; 

 state the statutory provisions under which the application is made; 

 state the address of the premises and name of the business; 

 describe the proposed use of the furniture; 

 indicate that representations relating to the application may be made to the Council during 
the public consultation period and when that period comes to an end; 

 state the Council’s website where the application and any accompanying material can be 
viewed during the consultation period; 

 state the address to which representations should be sent during the consultation period; 
and 

 the end date of the consultation (7 days starting the day after the application is submitted to 
the Authority) 

Page 17

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3

http://www.crawley.gov.uk/licensing/pavementlicence


Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 6 

 Where the application is to place furniture consisting of seating for use by persons for the 
purpose of consuming food or drink, where within the application site the applicant 
proposes to make reasonable provision for seating where smoking will not be permitted. 

 
3.5 Site Assessment 
 
The following matters will be taken into account by the Council when considering the site: 

 

 the matters set out in section 3(5) to 3(7) of the Business and Planning Act 2020 

 public health and safety – for example, ensuring that uses conform with latest guidance on 
social distancing and any reasonable crowd management measures needed as a result of a 
pavement licence being granted and businesses reopening; 

 public amenity – will the proposed use create nuisance to neighbouring occupiers by 
generating anti-social behaviour and litter; and 

 

 accessibility – taking a proportionate approach to considering the nature of the application 
site, its surroundings and its users, taking account of:  

 
o any other temporary measures in place that may be relevant to the proposal, for 

example, the reallocation of road space. This could include pedestrianised streets 
and any subsequent reallocation of this space to vehicles; 

o whether there are other permanent street furniture or structures in place on the 
footway that already reduce access; 

o the impact on any neighbouring premises 
o the recommended minimum footway widths and distances required for access by 

mobility impaired and visually impaired people so that it does not cause issue.  
o other users of the space, for example if there are high levels of pedestrian or cycle 

movements. 
 
Applicants are strongly encouraged to talk to neighbouring businesses and occupiers prior to 
applying to the Council, and so take any issues around noise, and nuisance into consideration as 
part of the proposal. 
 
3.7 Determination 
 
At the conclusion of the public consultation period, the Council has 7 days (with day 1 being the 
day after the last day of the consultation period) to determine the application. 
 
If the Council determines the application before the end of the determination period the local 
authority can: 

 

 grant the licence in respect of any or all of the purposes specified in the application, 

 grant the licence for some or all of the part of the highway specified in the application, or 

 refuse the application. 
 
If the Council does not determine the application 14 days after the application is made, , the 
application will be deemed to have been granted. 
 
3.8 Granting Applications 
 
Conditions will be attached to the grant of a pavement licence.  These will include specific terms 
such as days of the week and hours of the day when furniture is permitted, and the appearance 
and siting of furniture.  
 
A copy of the Council’s standard pavement licence conditions is shown at Appendix 2 and these 
will be attached to all pavement licences granted.  Additional conditions may be attached if the 
Council considers it appropriate in the circumstances of any particular case. 

Page 18

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 7 

 
The Council will generally only grant pavement licences which permit furniture to be placed on the 
highway between 09:00 and 21:00 hours.  
 
Applications seeking a pavement licence permitting furniture to be placed on the highway outside 
these hours will be assessed in terms of the criteria detailed above. The Council however retains 
the right to specify permitted hours which may be fewer than those requested in any application. 
 
3.8 Licence Duration 
 
The Council may grant a Pavement Licence for a minimum of 3 months and up to a maximum 
period which does not exceed 30 September 2021.  
 
The Council will usually grant a licence for 6 months in the first instance, after which a licence-
holder may apply for a further licence. 
 
If a licence is ‘deemed’ granted because the Authority does not make a decision on an application 
before the end of the determination period, then the licence will be valid for a year. 
 
3.9 Rejection of Applications 
 
If the Council considers that, taking into account any potential conditions which might be attached 
to a pavement licence, anything done by the applicant (if the licence were granted) would have one 
or more of the effects specified in section 3(6) of the Business and Planning Act 2020, the 
application will be rejected. 
 
If for any other reason the application site is considered unsuitable and concerns about suitability 
cannot be mitigated by conditions, then the application may be rejected.   
 
 

4. Conditions 
 
The Council’s standard conditions are set out at Appendices 2 and 3.  In some cases, extra 
measures may be required.  This will be determined when assessing any application, on a case by 
case basis. 
 
Regard will be had to the likely noise, nuisance and disturbance that may occur as a result of 
increased activity at a premises if a Pavement Licence is granted.  Conditions in this regard will be 
added as considered necessary to assist in the control, supervision and management of premises 
to mitigate against this. 
 
Where a Local Authority sets a local condition that covers the same matter as set out in national 
published conditions, then the locally set condition takes precedence over the national condition 
where there is reasonable justification to do so.   
 
However, this is not the case for the statutory no-obstruction condition which is as applies to all 
Licences.  The National ‘no obstruction conditions is shown in Appendix 4. 
 
 

5. Enforcement 
 
The Council aims to work closely with other Enforcement Authorities to enforce the provisions of all 
appropriate legislation.  The case remains that an obstruction of the Highway is an offence under 
The Highways Act 1980 and will be dealt with by the Highways Authority or the Police.  
 
Obtaining a pavement licence does not confer the holder immunity in regard to other legislation 
that may apply, e.g. public liability, health & safety at work, food hygiene and safety, alcohol and 

Page 19

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 8 

entertainment licensing, social distancing controls, and applicants must ensure all such 
permissions, etc. are in place prior to applying. 
 
If a condition attached to a pavement licence is breached the Council may will be able to issue a 
notice setting out steps which must be taken to remedy the breach.  If the steps are not taken, the 
Council may take the steps and recover the costs of this from the licence-holder.  
The Authority may revoke a licence in the following circumstances: 
 
1. For breach of condition (whether or not a remediation notice has been issued). 

 
2. Where the Council considers, as a result of the licence, that: 

 there is a risk to public heath of safety; 

 the highway is being obstructed (other than by anything permitted by the licence); or 

 anti-social behaviour or public nuisance being caused or risks being caused. 
 
3. It comes to light that anything material stated by the licence-holder in their application was 

false or misleading. 
 
4. The applicant did not comply with the requirement to affix the notice to notify the public for 

the relevant period. 
 

5. Where all or any part of the area of the relevant highway to which the licence relates has 
become unsuitable for any purpose for which the licence was granted or deemed to be 
granted 

 
 

6. Review Procedures 

 
This Policy covers pavement licences under the Business and Planning Act 2020 which are 
scheduled to expire on 30 September 2021, unless granted for a shorter period. 
 
This Policy will be reviewed from time to time including when changes occur in relevant legislation, 
the nature of pavement licences generally, relevant social distancing measures or as a result of 
local considerations within Crawley Borough.  
  

Page 20

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 9 

Appendix 1 
 

 

Site Notice Template. 
     
 
  
 
 CRAWLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL  
 
PREMISES NAME  
FULL ADDRESS 
  
BUSINESS & PLANNING ACT 2020 
 
 
AN APPLICATION HAS BEEN SUBMITTED FOR A  
PAVEMENT LICENCE 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that on XXXX, an application was made to Crawley Borough Council by 
XXXX (the Applicant) for a Pavement Licence in respect of the highway adjacent to the above 
address, to include: 
 

- Siting of x tables, x chairs x benches and x barriers/other furniture (describe) of X 
size/area to delineate the area in front/to the side/at the rear of the premises where the 
a pavement licence will apply if granted 

- The application seeks a Pavement Licence to place furniture on the highway at these 
times on these days of the week::   
 

Day of the week: Hours: 

  

 
 
Any representation relating this application should be directed to the email below and 
received by Crawley Borough Council within the Public Consultation Period.  
 
The Public Consultation Period means 7 days beginning on the day after that on which the 
application is made to the Council.  Representations should be received no later than XXXX. 
 
A full copy of the application and supporting documents can be found on the Council’s website at 
www.crawlley.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of Application      (NOTE:  The date the notice was placed must be the same date as 
the date the application was submitted to the Council) 
 
 
  

Page 21

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3

http://www.crawlley.gov.uk/


Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 10 

Appendix 2 
 
Crawley Borough Council  
Standard Pavement Licence Conditions  
 
1. The grant of this pavement licence does not grant the licence-holder an exclusive right to use 

the highway site covered by the licence (“Licence Site”).  Upon request, the licence-holder 
must give Crawley Borough Council and other public authorities including the Police, 
Highways Authority and other Statutory Undertakers) access to the Licence Site for 
emergencies, maintenance, installation, special events, improvements or any other 
reasonable cause.  If the consequence of access is that the licence-holder is unable to use 
the Licence Site for any period, the licence-holder is not entitled to compensation from 
Crawley Borough Council or other public authority for any loss arising out of the access. 

 
2. The licence-holder must have at all times during the currency of this pavement licence a valid 

Public Liability Insurance for the use of the Licence Site pursuant to this pavement licence.  
The insurance policy must indemnify Crawley Borough Council and West Sussex County 
Council against all actions, proceedings, demands, liability and claims for injury, damage or 
loss to users of the public highway, arising from the use of the Licence Site for the permitted 
purpose.  The minimum level of indemnity must be £10 million respect of any one incident. 

 
3. Furniture is only permitted to be placed on the Licence Site by this pavement licence within 

the permitted times as described in this licence.  Outside these times the furniture must be 
removed from the highway. 

 
4. Crawley Borough Council and West Sussex County Council may remove and store or 

dispose of furniture from the Licence Site if: 
 
a. furniture is on the Licence Site outside the permitted times; or 

 
b. furniture is on the highway outside the Licence Site at any time of the day. 

 
Where furniture is removed by either council, the cost of the removal, storage and disposal 
must be paid by the licence-holder must be paid if it is left there outside the permitted hours, 
or should any conditions of the licence be ignored.  The Council will not be responsible for its 
safekeeping. 

 
5. The licence holder is not to make or cause to be made any claim against Crawley Borough 

Council in the event of any property of the licence holder becoming lost or damaged in any 
way from whatever cause. 

 
6. An unimpeded pedestrian route must be maintained at all times for people wishing to use the 

footway. 
 
7. Anything done by the licence-holder pursuant to this Licence, or any activity of other persons 

which is enabled by the Licence, must not have any of the following effects:  
 

a. preventing traffic, other than vehicular traffic, from— 
 
i. entering the relevant highway at a place where such traffic could otherwise 

enter it (ignoring any pedestrian planning order or traffic order made in relation 
to the highway), 
 

ii. passing along the relevant highway, or 
 

iii. having normal access to premises adjoining the relevant highway, 

Page 22

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 11 

 
b. preventing any use of vehicles which is permitted by a pedestrian planning order or 

which is not prohibited by a traffic order, 
 
c. preventing statutory undertakers having access to any apparatus of theirs under, in, on 

or over the highway, or 
 
d. preventing the operator of an electronic communications code network having access 

to any electronic communications apparatus kept installed for the purposes of that 
network under, in, on or over the highway. 

 
8. Where the furniture to be put on the relevant highway consists of seating for use by persons 

for the purpose of consuming food or drink, the licence-holder must make reasonable 
provision for seating where smoking is not permitted. 

 
9. The method of marking the boundary of the licensed area must be agreed between the 

licence holder and Officers of Crawley Borough Council. Whatever method is agreed a 2 
metre clear walkway must be maintained for the use of pedestrians.  

 
10. Emergency routes to the premises and adjacent buildings must not be obstructed by the 

Pavement Licence, which should not, in normal circumstances, extend beyond the width of 
the premises frontage. 

 
11. The only furniture which may be placed on the Licence Site pursuant to this licence is that 

which was described as part of the application or subsequently approved by an officer of 
Crawley Borough Council.   

 
12. The licence-holder must keep any furniture placed on the Licence Site pursuant to this 

licence in a good state of repair.  
 

13. Crawley Borough Council will have no liability for any damages in the event of any of the 
furniture permitted to be placed on the Licence Site by this Licence is lost, stolen or damaged 
in any way from whatsoever cause.   

 
14. Furniture should be placed so as not to obstruct driver sightlines, or road traffic signs.  
 
15. Placement of furniture permitted to be placed on the Licence Site must allow pedestrians to 

use the footway parallel to the frontage of the premises. Alternative items may not be used 
without first seeking the written authority of the Licensing Team of Crawley Borough Council. 
Patio heaters must not be used. 

 
16. All potential obstructions must be removed from the Public Highway when the premises are 

closed to prevent a safety hazard to pedestrians, particularly during the hours of darkness. 
 
17. The licence-holder should ensure that they use the Licence Site in a safe and orderly 

manner, thereby ensuring that any safety risk or nuisance to customers, other users of the 
Public Highway or any adjacent land or premises, is minimised.   

 
18. The licence-holder must ensure that their use of the Licence Site does not interfere with 

Highway drainage arrangements. 
 
19. During the hours of darkness suitable and sufficient lighting must be provided to ensure safe 

use of the area.   
 
20. All detritus (food and drink remnants, spillages, bottles, cans, wrappers etc) be regularly 

removed from the Licence Site.  The licence holder must make arrangements to regularly 

Page 23

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 12 

check for and to remove litter and rubbish on pedestrian walkways, caused by persons using 
the premises, for a distance of up to 10 metres from the boundary of the Licence Site.   

 
21. The licence holder must ensure that any tables placed on the Licence Site pursuant to this 

licence are cleared in an efficient manner during the hours of operation.  The licence holder 
must ensure the licensed area and surrounding highway is to be washed down at the 
completion of each day's usage using a method sufficient to remove food debris, grease and 
other spillages that may occur. 

 
22. All furniture covered by the Licence shall be freestanding. The licence holder is not permitted 

to make any fixtures, or excavations of any kind, to the surface of the highway and it must 
remain undisturbed.  The licence-holder must pay to Wets Sussex County Council any costs 
incurred as a result of damage to the highway from the positioning of furniture.  

 
23. The Licence Holder must not permit or allow the consumption of alcoholic liquor within the 

Licence Site unless there is a premises licence granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in 
respect of the premise adjacent to the Licence Site in respect of which this licence was 
granted.  

 
24. The Premises Licence Holder  of a premises licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 or any 

modification or re-enactment thereof, must not allow the consumption of alcoholic liquor 
outside of the hours in force for the premises itself. 

 
25. The Pavement licence must be displayed on the premises with a plan of the agreed layout of 

the Licence Site. 
 
26. The licence-holder is responsible for ensuring that the conditions of the licence and any other 

necessary permissions and regulations are adhered to.   
 
27. The licence holder must remove any tables, chairs and other furniture immediately at the end 

of the licence period or on revocation of the licence. 
 
28. This permission is for a limited period expiring on the date specified on the Pavement 

Licence,  after which time if the Proprietor wishes to renew or continue the use they will need 
to submit a further application; 

 
29. On expiration of licence, the table and chairs become an illegal obstruction of the highway if 

not removed.   
 
30. The Licence Holder  is required to display the attached Licence in a prominent position in a 

front window, or door, of the premises so that it is visible to any person.  
 
31. Crawley Borough Council reserves the right to revoke this licence at any time if any of the 

above conditions are not fulfilled and maintained. 
 
32. This licence is not transferrable.   
 
33. The licence-holder must surrender this Licence within 7 days of the selling or transferring 

their interest in the Premises , such that they no longer have control over the Premises.  
 
 
  

Page 24

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 13 

 
 
 
Dated                            day of                          2020 
 
 
 
 
Signed   
 
  Head of Community Services  
 
 
I hereby acknowledge receipt of the County Council’s permission, which the above is a true copy 
and I accept the conditions contained therein. 
 
 
Signed:…………………………………………………. 
  On behalf of                                                                           Dated: 
           
  

Page 25

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 14 

Appendix 4 
 
Crawley Borough Council Local Licence Conditions relating to Noise, 
Nuisance, Crime & Disorder 
 
(These will be added as considered necessary on a case by case basis)  
 

1. A documented risk assessment to address all aspects of the “Health Protection 
(Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulations 2020”. This will include but not be 
restricted to the consideration of the provision of Personal Protective Equipment, the use 
of  Security Industry Authority (SIA) Door Staff to ensure social distancing is maintained, 
Body Worn Video cameras, staff training policy regarding contraventions of COVID19 
regulations by patrons, managing a queuing system (in consultation with neighbouring 
premises), use of glass vessels, monitoring numbers on the premises and members of 
differing households, additional cleaning measures, access/ egress, managing anti-social 
behaviour and the impact of such upon local residents.  

2. No glass vessels shall be allowed off the premises.  

3. Staff must ensure that all empty glasses and bottles are promptly cleared away from 
public areas. 

4. Regular patrols are to be conducted, at least hourly,  outside the premises where the 
licence applies. 

5. A partition will be installed to clearly delineate the licensed area preventing passing 
pedestrians/children walking into furniture or onto the licensed area 

6. When the outside area is no longer in use for licensable activity all unsecured tables, 
chairs and associated furniture, shall be removed from the outside area and /or stacked 
and secured.  

7. Waiter/waitress service only to seated members of the public 

8. Use of the outside area shall cease at 2100 hours.  

9. There shall be a direct means of supervision within the external area to which the licence 
applies.  

10. No amplified entertainment of any sort shall be permitted in the external area(s) covered 
by the licence.  

11. No amplified entertainment of any sort from within the premises shall be audible in any 
external area(s) covered by the licence.  

12. Where takeaway orders are prepared for collection,  this must be managed so as not to 
impact upon social distancing of patrons or members of the public passing the premises 

13. Where provided for consumption in external areas and/or within open vessels. all 
beverages shall be sold, supplied or decanted into shatterproof, plastic or cardboard 
receptacles. 

 
 
 

Page 26

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council Pavement Licensing Policy P a g e  | 15 

Appendix 5 
National Conditions 
 
The Secretary of State publishes this condition in exercise of his powers under [clause 5(6)] of the 
Business and Planning Act 2020: 
 
Condition relating to clear routes of access: 
 
It is a condition that clear routes of access along the highway must be maintained, taking into 
account the needs of disabled people, and the recommended minimum footway widths and 
distances required for access by mobility impaired and visually impaired people as set out in 
Section 3.1 of Inclusive Mobility. 
 
Guidance on the effect of this condition 
 
1. To the extent that conditions imposed or deemed to be imposed on a pavement licence do not 

require the licence holder to require clear routes of access to be maintained, taking into 
account the needs of disabled people and the recommended minimum footway widths and 
distances required for access by mobility impaired and visually impaired people as set out in 
Section 3.1 of Inclusive Mobility, the licence is granted subject to those requirements. 
 

2. To the extent that a licence is granted subject to a condition which imposes requirements to 
maintain clear routes of access that are inconsistent with the requirements set out in this 
condition this condition is not imposed on the licence. 

 
 

Page 27

 3
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e:
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
U

rg
en

cy
 

Appendix aAgenda Item 3

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/inclusive-mobility
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/inclusive-mobility


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Decision Log Service Area(s) Page 

Date: Decision / Action / Message: Rationale: Completed 
by: 

Communicati
on: 

09 July 
2020 

Planned programme opening the council’s 86 
unsupervised play areas and outdoor gyms 
from the 15th July 2020.  Clear signage will be 
in place outlining the social distancing 
requirements, protocols for use and that it is 
the users responsibility to adhere to this 
guidance.  

The Government gave permission for 
owners / operators to re-open certain 
facilities, including play areas (outdoor) and 
outdoor gyms, from Saturday 4th July 2020.  
Annual inspections of the play areas have 
been completed, risk assessments 
undertaken and a decision taken to open 
taking a planned approach.   
 

 
Head of 
Community 
Services with 
Leader of the 
Council 

 
Website and 
social media 

16 July 
2020 

K2 and Bewbush leisure sites will open 
effective 25th July for fitness activities.  The 
swimming pool will open from 30th July. 

Following Government guidance on the 
opening of leisure centres and gyms. 
A full risk assessment has been undertaken 
to ensure activities meet with social 
distancing requirements and health and 
safety guidance. 
 

 
Head of 
Partnership 
Services 

 
Website and 
social media 

16 July 
2020 

Council run public toilets to open from 20th 
July 

To support the continued opening of 
facilities within the Town Centre and 
neighbourhood parades public toilets will be 
opened with an enhanced cleaning regime. 

 
Head of 
Partnership 
Services with 
Leader of the 
Council. 

 
Website and 
social media 

16 July 
2020 

Tilgate Nature Centre to open from 20th July The Nature Centre will open with limited 
numbers of visitors who must book and pay 
in advance.  A revised pricing structure 
which includes a discount for Crawley 
residents will be in place. 
 

 
Head of 
Community 
Services 

 
Website and 
social media 

16 July 
2020 

Town Hall to open for booked appointments 
for customers from 22nd July. 

Whilst the council has been able to deliver 
services remotely it is necessary to provide 
a mechanism for customers to safely return 
equipment, access online services (for 
those with no individual means to access) or 
consult with staff.  This will be arranged by 
appointment via the Contact Centre. 

 
Head of Digital 
& 
Transformation 

 
Website and 
social media 

P
age 29

 4 COVID-19: CMT Urgent Significant Op

A
genda Item

 4



 

 

 

Date: Decision / Action / Message: Rationale: Completed 
by: 

Communicati
on: 

25 July 
2020 

Launch of structured play services during the 
summer. 

The council’s Adventure Play sites will 
remain closed until further notice.  During 
the summer a series of community support 
and structured play services running 
Monday – Friday during August from Cherry 
Lane and Millpond. 

 
Head of 
Community 
Services 

 
Website and 
social media 

P
age 30

 4 COVID-19: CMT Urgent Significant Op

A
genda Item

 4


	Agenda
	1 Delegated Planning Decisions
	2 Temporary Traffic Regulation Order: Horsham Road
	3 Chief Executive: Emergency Urgency Decision - Adoption of Pavement Licence Policy
	Appendix A: Pavement Licence Policy

	4 COVID-19: CMT Urgent Significant Operational Decisions

